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STREET ADDRESS:510 Ridge Street HISTORIC NAME : Hodges-Gleason House
MAP & PARCEL: 29-275 DATE / PERIOD : 1857
§ CENSUS TRACT AND BLOCK: 4-34 STYLE : Greek Revival
PRESENT ZONING: R-3 HEIGHT (o cornice) OR STORIES:  sy0reys
ORIGINAL OWNER: James M. Hodges DIMENSIONS AND LAND AREA: 115" x 130" (14,950 sq. ft.)
ORIGINAL USE; Residence CONDITION : Poor
PRESENT USE : Rental Property (spartments) SURVEYOR /Bibb
PRESENT OWNER ! Ronald Thompson DATE OF SURVEY. 1974 Uevised]980)

ADDRESS 1932 Arlington Blvd. SOURCES® City/County Records
Charlottesvil]e, VA Alexander, Recollections of Early Ch'ville

i AL S S

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

This structure is a middle class interpretation of the larger high style town houses found at the Hughes House
(Market Street) or the Abell-Gleason House (521 North First Street). As with the above mansions, the Hodges-Gleason
B House is decorated wi th pilasters applied to a two storey, three bay brick building. . The scale of the house, which

is only one room deep, is domestjc rather than grand. The entrance porch is an example of later Victorian design
and was undoubtedly added afterr the Civil War.

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

John H. Bibb purchased a 2%~acre lot apposite his home of Ridge Street (Bibb-Wolfe House, 505 Ridge Street) for
$300 in 1852 (AcDB 50-270) and sold it to James M. Hodges in 1859 for $500 (ACDB 58-340). 0On the same day, Hodges
gave a deed of trust for $2600 on this Yhouse and lot nearly opposite the residence of E. M. Wolfe" to R. T. W. Duke,
trustee for Helen S. Morris (Mrs. Wm. M. Morris) (ACDB 58-337 & 443).  Tax records show that the house had been built
in 1857, Thus, Hodges apparently built the house before receiving a deed to the lot. The house changed hands severa]
times between 1862 and 1864 before being acquired by John T. Barksdale (ACDB 59-683, 60-285, 61-166). He sold it to
§ Henry A. Darrow in 1868 (ACDB 63-160). James Alexander wrote in 1874 that Darrow's “pretty residence" had been built
by Hodges and later owned by Morris. Thomas M. Farish bought the house in 1885 (AcDB 84-430) and sold it in 1887 to
James E. Gleason, whose family owned it until 1946 (ACDB 88-370; City DB 77-388; 129-383). The house has had several
owners since then and has been used as rental property, except for the years 1947-49 when it was owned and occupied by
R..H. Marsh (DB 131-367, 143-102). Ronald Thompson bought it in 1973 (DB 352-40).

Additional References: City DB 217-232, 290-177, 348-270.
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VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HISTORIC RESOURCES 03/24/1994

VDHR Reconnaissance Survey Form

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF HISTORIC RESOURCES
PROPERTY SURVEY FORM
RECONNAISSANCE LEVEL

IDENTIFICATION INFORMATION

VDHR File # 104-0025-021

Property Name:
Historic Hodges-Gleason House

NR Property Category: Building
Wuzit: House

Tax Code: Section Parcel

County/City: Charlottesville (City)

USGS Map: USGS Quad: Charlottesville East

ADDRESS/LOCATION INFORMATION

Address: 510 Ridge Street
Location:
Vicinity of: Municipality: ZIP: 22901

PROPERTY CLASSIFICATION INFORMATION

Property Boundaries:
Ownership: Private

RESOURCE COUNT -

# Category Contributing?
TOTAL: 1
1 Building Contributing
Contrib: 1
Non-Contrib: 0
WUZIT COUNT -
# Wuzit Contributing?
TOTAL: 1
1 House Contributing
Contrib: 1

Non-Contrib: 0



RESOURCE - GENERAL DESCRIPTIVE INFORMATION

Resource Level:
Estimated Construction Date: 1857
Source of Date: Tax Records
Physical Status: Existing
Condition: Good
Threat: None Known
Degree of Historic Integrity:
Association:
Design:
Feeling:
Location:
Materials:
Setting:
Workmanship:

PRIMARY RESOURCE RECONNAISSANCE DESCRIPTION

Architectural Style/Derivative: Greek Revival

# of Stories: 2.0 # of Bays Wide: 3 # of Bays Deep: il

Arch Config: Geo Config:

Footprint:

Component # Form/Treatment Material Matr’l Treatment
Chimneys  Interior Ead Brick
Foundation English basement Brick Plastered

Porch Front Wood l-story, 3-bay

Roof low hipped Metal Standing seam
Windows double-hung sash Wood 6/6

Brief Architectural Description of Primary Resource:
This three-bay, single-pile, two-storey house on an English
basement is a vernacular interpretation of the high style
Greek Revival detached town house in the pilastered style.
Walls are constructed of brick laid in eight-course
American-with-Flemish bond. It has a low-pitched hipped
roof covered with standing-seam metal with deeply projecting
eaves, a boxed cornice, and a plain, deep frieze. There are
two interior end chimneys. Windows are double-sash,
6-over-6 light, with architrave trim. Basement and second
storey windows are shorter. The wide one-bay Victorian
veranda was probably added around the turn of the century.
It has a nearly flat hipped roof covered with standing seam
metal. It has projecting eaves with a boxed cornice,
chamfered posts with scroll brackets, and a Colonial Revival
balustrade. The entrance in the central bay of the facade
has paneled pilasters, 4-1light sidelights over panels, a
3-light rectangular transom, and corner lights. Above the
entrance, a second-storey window is flanked by paneled
pilasters and narrow, sidelight-sized double-sash windows,
and all three have paneled spandrels. A series of wooden



tadditions and enclosed porches covers the rear
elevation.1987: The rear additions were replaced in 1985

with a two-storey weatherboarded wing covering the northern
two bays.

Brief Architectural Description of Additions and Alterations
The porch probably dates from around the turn of the
century.

Brief Architectural Description of Secondary Resources:

Potentially Contributes to Historic District:

Ridge Street Historic District
Potentially Associated with NR Multiple Property:

Architectural and Historical Summary:

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

John H. Bibb purchased a 2 1/2-acre lot opposite his home on Ridge Street
(Bibb-Wolfe House, 505 Ridge Street) for $300 in 1852 (ACDB 50-270) and sold

it to James M. Hodges in 1859 for $500 (ACDB 58-340). On the same
day, Hodges gave a deed of trust for $2600 on this "house
and lot nearly opposite the residence of E. M. Wolfe" to R.
T. W. Duke, trustee for Helen §S. Morris (Mrs. Wm. M. Morris)
(ACDB 58-337 & 443). Tax records show that the house had
been built in 1857. Thus, Hodges apparently built the house
before receiving a deed to the lot. The house changed hands
several times between 1862 and 1864 before being acquired by
John T. Barksdale (ACDB 59-683, 60-285, 61-166). He sold it
to Henry A. Darrow in 1868 (ACDB 63-160). James Alexander
wrote in 1874 that Darrow’s "pretty residence" had been
built by Hodges and later owned by Morris. Thomas M. Farish
bought the house in 1885 (ACDB 84-430) and sold it in 1887
to James E. Gleason, whose family owned it until 1946 (ACDB
88-370; City 77-388; 129-383). The house has had several
owners since then and has been used as rental property,
except for the years 1947-49 when it was owned and occupied
by James H. March (DB 131-367, 143-102). Ronald Thompson
bought it in 1973 (DB 352-60).

Additional References: City DB 217-232, 290-177, 348-270.

1987: Walter D. and Barbara J. Pilkey bought the house in 1982 (DB 432-281)
and sold it the next year to the Oakwood Land Trust (DB 439-404), which has

rehabilitated it.

SIGNIFICANCE & RELATION TO EVALUATION CRITERIA

Built in 1857, the Hodges-Gleason House is an

elegant vernacular version of the high style Greek Revival
town house in the pilastered style. Its front entrance and
the tri-partite window arrangement above are nicely
detailed, as is the somewhat later Colonial Revival
verandah. This house is one of the most important in the
Ridge Street Historic District, and it has been individually
designated as a local historic landmark.
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PHOTOGRAPHIC/DRAWINGS DOCUMENTATION

Media VDHR Neg # Frames Date

B&W 35mm photos 13471 5 - 7 1/ /1994
Ei‘b_‘_”fi‘i"f??’fl‘fi‘ff‘_’?i‘?ﬁ_______________________________________________________==
MISSING DATA ELEMENT

CRM Event Agency/Organization Date L
Survey PAVA/Smead and City/Bibb / /1974

IPS data entry-PAVA (Smead)
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HODGES-GLEASON HOUSE

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

This three-bay, single-pile, two-storey house on an English basement is a vernacular interpretation of the high
Greek Revival style. Walls are constructed of brick laid in eight-course American-with-Flemish bond. It has
a low-pitched hipped roof covered with standing-seam metal with projecting eaves, a boxed cornice, and a plain,

has projecting eaves with a boxed cornice, chamfered posts with scroll brackets, and a Colonial Revival
balustrade. The entrance in the central bay of the facade has paneled pilasters, 4-light sidelights over panels,
a 3-light rectangular transom, and corner lights. Above the entrance, a second-storey window is flanked by
paneled pilasters and narrow, sidelight-sized double-sash windows, and all three have paneled spandrels, A
series of wooden additions and enclosed porches covers the rear elevation,

1987: The rear additions were replaced in 1985 with a two-storey weatherboarded wing covering the northern
two bays.

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

John H. Bibb purchased a 2 1 /2-acre lot opposite his home on Ridge Street (Bibb-Wolfe House, 505 Ridge
Street) for $300 in 1852 (ACDB 50-270) and sold it to James M. Hodges in 1859 for $500 (ACDB 58-340).
On the same day, Hodges gave a deed of trust for $2600 on this "house and lot nearly opposite the residence
of E. M. Wolfe"to R. T. W. Duke, trustee for Helen S. Morris (Mrs. Wm. M. Morris) (ACDB 58-337 & 443).
Tax records show that the house had been built in 1857. Thus, Hodges apparently built the house before
receiving a deed to the lot. The house changed hands several times between 1862 and 1864 before being
acquired by John T. Barksdale (ACDB 59-683, 60-285, 61-166). He sold it to Henry A. Darrow in 1868
(ACDB 63-160). James Alexander wrote in 1874 that Darrow’s "pretty residence” had been built by Hodges
and later owned by Morris. Thomas M. Farish bought the house in 1885 (ACDB 84-430) and sold it in 1887
to James E. Gleason, whose family owned it until 1946 (ACDB 88-370; City 77-388; 129-383). The house has
had several owners since then and has been used as rental property, except for the years 1947-49 when it was
owned and occupied by James H. Marsh (DB 131-367, 143-102). Ronald Thompson bought it in 1973 (DB
352-60). Walter D. and Barbara J. Pilkey bought the house in 1982 (DB 432- 281) and sold it the next year
to the Oakwood Land Trust (DB 439-404), which has rehabilitated it.

Additional References: City DB 217-232, 290-177, 348-270.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
Built in 1857, the Hodges-Gleason House is an elegant vernacular version of the Greek Revival style. Its front
entrance and the tri-partite window arrangement above are nicely detailed, as is the later Colonial Revival

verandah. This house is one of the most important in the Ridge Street Historic District, and it has been
individually designated as a local historic landmark.
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HODGES-GLEASON HOUSE

STREET ADDRESS: 510 Ridge Street
MAP & PARCEL: 29-275
VDHR FILE NUMBER: 104-25-21
CITY FILE NUMBER: 151
PRESENT ZONING: R-3
ORIGINAL OWNER: James M. Hodges
ORIGINAL USE: Residence
PRESENT USE: Rental Property (apartments)
PRESENT OWNER: Carter Orbin F Trustee
ADDRESS: 1108 L. High
Charlottesville, VA 22901
ISTORIC NAME: Hodges-Gleason House
ATE/PERIOD: 1857, ¢. 1985
YLE: Greek Revival
GHT (TO CORNICE) OR STORIES: 2 storeys
“NSIONS AND LAND AREA: 115 x 130’ (14,950 sq. ft)
MTION: Good
SYOR: /Bibb
JF SURVEY: 1974, 1987, Revised 1993
%S: City/County Records

Alexander, Recollections of Early Charlottesville
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STREET ADDRESS: 510 Ridge Street
MAP & PARCEL: 29-275
FILE NUMBER: 151
PRESENT ZONING: R-3
ORIGINAL OWNER:  James M. Hodges
ORIGINAL USE: Residence
PRESENT USE: Rental Property (apartments)
PRESENT OWNER: Ronald Thompson

ADDRESS:: 1932 Arlington Blvd.

Charlottesville, VA

HISTORIC NAME: Hodges-Gleason House
DATE/PERIOD: 1857, c. 1985
STYLE: Greek Revival
HEIGHT (TO CORNICE) OR STORIES: 2 storeys
DIMENSIONS AND LAND AREA: 115’ x 130/ (14,950 sq. ft.)

CONDITION: Poor (1974)/Good (1987)
SURVEYOR: /Bibb

DATE OF SURVEY: 1974 (revised 1980 & 1987)
SOURCES: City/County Records

Alexander, Recollections of Early Charlottesville

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

This three-bay, single-pile, two-storey house on an English basement is a
vernacular interpretation of the high style Greek Revival detached town house
in the pilastered style. Walls are constructed of brick laid in eight-course
American-with-Flemish bond. It has a Tow-pitched hipped roof covered with
standing-seam metal with deeply projecting eaves, a boxed cornice, and a plain,
deep frieze. There are interior end chimneys. Windows are double-sash,
6-over-6 light, with architrave trim. Basement and second storey windows are
shorter. The wide one-bay Victorian veranda was probably added around the turn
of the century. It has a nearly flat hipped roof covered with standing-seam
metal. It has projecting eaves with a boxed cornice, chamfered post with
scroll brackets, and a Colonial Revival balustrade. The entrance in the
central bay of the facade has paneled pilasters, 4-light sidelights over
panels, a 3-Tight rectangular transom, and corner lights. Above the entrance,
a_second-storey window is flanked by paneled pilasters and narrow,
sidelight-sized double-sash windows, and all three have paneled spandrels. A
series of wooden additions and enclosed porches covers the rear elevation.

1987: The rear additions were replaced in 1985 with a two-storey
weatherboarded wing covering the northern two bays.

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

John H. Bibb purchased a 2 1/2-acre lot opposite his home on Ridge Street
(Bibb-Wolfe House, 505 Ridge Street) for $300 in 1852 (ACDB 50-270) and sold it
to James M. Hodges in 1859 for $500 (ACDB 58-340). On the same day, Hodges
gave a deed of trust for $2600 on this “house and 1ot nearly opposite the
residence of E. M. Wofe" to R. T. W. Duke, trustee for Helen S. Morris (Mrs.
Wm. M. Morris) (ACDB 58-337 & 443). Tax records show that the house had been
built in 1857. Thus, Hodges apparently built the house before receiving a deed
to the Tot. The house changed hands several times between 1862 and 1864 before
being acquired by John T. Barksdale (ACDB 59-683, 60-285, 61-166). He sold it
to Henry A. Darrow in 1868 (ACDB 63-160). James Alexander wrote in 1874 that



Darrow’s "pretty residence" had been built by Hodges and later owned by Morris.
Thomas M. Farish bought the house in 1885 (ACDB 84-430) and sold it in 1887 to
James E. Gleason, whose family owned it until 1946 (ACDB 88-370; City 77-388;
129-383). The house has had several owners since then and has been used as
rental property, except for the years 1947-49 when it was owned and occupied by
James H. Marsh (DB 131-367, 143-102). Ronald Thompson bought it in 1973 (DB
352-60).

Additional References: City DB 217-232, 290-177, 348-270.

The house was purchased by The Oakwood Land Trust in 1983 (DB 432-281, 439-404)
and rehabilitated c. 1985,
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STREET ADDRESS:510 Ridge Street

HISTORIC NAME -Hodges-Gleason House
MAP 8 PARCEL: 29-275

DATE / PERIOD : 1857, df-p. e, 1P
CENSUS TRACT AND BLOCK : 4-34 STYLE : Greek Revival
PRESENT ZONING : R-3 HEIGHT (fo cornice) OR STORIES: Storeys
ORIGINAL OWNER: James M. Hodges DIMENSIONS AND LAND AREA: 115' x | 30 (14,950 sq. ft.)
ORIGINAL USE: Residence CONDITION : Poor
PRESENT USE: Rental Property (apartments) SURVEYOR : /Bibb ‘
PRESENT OWNER : Ronald Thompson DATE OF SURVEY : 1974 (revised 1980)"/9?&‘\
ADDRESS : 1932 Arlington Blvd. SOURCES : - City/County Records -
Charlottesville, VA

Alexander, Recollections of Early Ch'ville

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

. is a middle class interpretation of the larges "étyle town houses found at the Hughes House
(Market Street) or the €ason House (521 North Ejrs=e

treet). As with the above mansions, the Hodges-Gleason
ﬂouse is decorated with pilasters applied™ 623 "two storey, three bay brick buifding. -The scale of the house, which
s only one room deep, is domespi h

O C .rather than grangs rance porch is an example of later Victorian design
and was undoubtedly added=3 teri'the Civil War. )

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

John H. Bibb purchased a 24~
$300 in 1852 (ACDB 50-270) and sold it t
jave a deed of trust for $2600 on this !
‘tustee for Helen S. Morris (Mrs. Wm. M

{Bibb-Wol fe House, 505 Ridge Street) for
0 James M. Hodges in 1859 for $500 (ACDB 58-340). 0On the same day, Hodges

house and 1ot nearly opposite the residence of E. M. Wolfe' to R. T. W. Duke, :
i Tax records show that the house had been built

ed to the lot. The house changed hands several
eing acquired by John T. Barksdale (ACDB 59-683, 60-285, 61-166). He sold it to
lenry A. Darrow in 1868 (AcDB 63-160).

hat Darrow's "'pretty residence" had been built
'y Hodges and later owned by Morris. Thomas M, Farish bought the house in 1885 (ACDB 84-430) and sold it in 1887 to

77-388; 129-383). The house has had several
whners since then and has been used as rental property,

except for the years 1947-49 when it was owned and occupied by
--H. Marsh (DB 131-367, 143-102). PRonald Thompson bought it in 1973 (DB 352-60) .

City DB 217-232, 290-177, 348-270.
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